
Northern Inyo Hospital

June 17 2015 Regular Meeting
June 17 2015 Regular Meeting - June 17 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda

Agenda, 6-17-15 Regular Meeting

Consent Agenda

Minutes, 5-13-15 Regular Meeting
Financial and Statistical Reports, April 2015

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report, June 17 2015

Performance Excellence Report

Performance Excellence Report, June 2015

Fiscal year 2015/2016 Annual Budget

Fiscal year 2015/2016 Annual Budget

401(a) Retirement Plan Amendment

401(a) Retirement Plan Amendment 2

Mammography Upgrade

Mammography Upgrade

Floor Waxing Proposal

Floor Waxing Proposal

Appropriations Limit for 2015/2016 Fiscal Year

Appropriations Limit for 2015/2016

Microsoft Licensing Renewal

Microsoft Licensing Renewal

Update to Employee Discount Policy

Update to Employee Discount Policy

Engblade Hospitalist Contract Addendum

Engblade Hospitalist Contract Addendum

Microsoft True-up Cost Proposal

Microsoft True Up Cost Approval

..............................................................................2

..............................................................................5
............................................................9

.........................................................................19

...........................................................59

......................................................................73

.....................................................................80

............................................................................................81

............................................................................................106

........................................................................112

.................................................................................117

....................................................................118

............................................................120

..........................................................................121

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

June 17, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Northern Inyo Hospital Board Room at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 p.m.).          

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board.  (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of two 

minutes each.) 

 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
 

3. Approval of minutes of the May 13 2015 regular meeting  

4. Approval of financial and statistical reports for the month of April 2015 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

5. Chief Executive Officer’s Report; Victoria Alexander-Lane   

A.  Physician on boarding              G.  Leadership training 

B.  LAFCO update H.  Process  Management 

C.  CMO Visit – Role of CMO I.  IT Strategy 

D.  RHC, a medical home J.  Cardinal Village Resort 

E.  Transitions in care K.  Community Relations 

F.  Telemedicine update  

6. Chief of Staff Report; Mark Robinson, M.D. 

A. Medical Staff privileging, credentialing, and advancements (action items): 

1. Advancement of Felix Karp, M.D. from Temporary Locums to Provisional Active Staff 

with clinical privileges as requested 

2. Advancement of Matthew Wise, M.D. from Provisional Active Staff to Active Staff with 

clinical privileges as requested 

3. Granting of Pelvic Radiology privileges as requested commensurate with current practice 

to Keith Shonnard, M.D. 



Page, 2, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, June 17, 2015 
 
 

B. Acceptance of the Medical Staff resignations of Sudhir Kakarla, M.D. and Kristin Collins, 

D.O. (action items). 

C. Hospital wide Policy and Procedure approvals (action items): 

1. Endo Venous Laser Treatment 

2. Malignant Hyperthermia Cart Check 

3. Shoulder Arthroscopy 3 Point Distraction System 

4. Surgery Tissue/Bone Graft “Look Back” Policy 

5. Bone Graft Tissue Bank 

6. Utilization Review Plan 

7. Organ/Tissue/Eye Donation 

7. Chief Nursing Officer Report (information item). 

8.  Chief Performance Excellence Officer Report (information item). 

      9.  New Business 

              A. Approval of Fiscal year 2015/2016 annual budget (action item). 

              B. Northern Inyo Healthcare District 401(a) Plan Amendment 2 (action item). 

              C. Mammography Upgrade (action item). 

              D. Floor Waxing Proposal, Just Do Right Janitorial (action item). 

              E. Approval of Appropriations Limit for 2015/2016 fiscal year, Resolution #15-01 (action item). 

              F. Microsoft Licensing renewal (action item). 

              G. Proposed update to current employee discount policy (action item).   

              H. Hospitalist Contract Addendum, Joy Engblade, M.D. (action item). 

              I.  Microsoft True-up cost approval (action item). 

     10.  Reports from Board members (information items). 

     11. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

            B.  Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code section 54956(d)(2)). 

            C.  Confer regarding action filed against Northern Inyo Healthcare District and other Defendants  

                  (Government Code Section 54956.9(a)). 

             

 

6/8/2015, 5:14 PM 



Page, 3, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, June 17, 2015 
 
 
 

     12.  Return to open session, and report of any action taken in closed session.   

     13.  Adjournment.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

6/8/2015, 5:14 PM 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      May 13, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 1 of 4 
   
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 
 

PRESENT M.C. Hubbard, President 
Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer   
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
PHYSICIAN 
RECRUITMENT 
 
 
 
 
LAFCO UPDATE 
 
 
 
 
      
 
NIH FOUNDATION 
UPDATE 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson M.D., Chief of Staff 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Ms. Hubbard stated at this time persons in the audience may speak on any 
items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the 
District Board.  No comments were heard. 
 
Ms. Hubbard called attention to the consent agenda for this meeting, 
which contained the following items: 

- Approval of minutes of the April 7 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of minutes of the April 15 2015 regular meeting 
- Approval of financial and statistical reports for the month of 

March, 2015 
It was moved by John Ungersma M.D., seconded by D. Scott Clark M.D., 
and unanimously passed to approve the proposed consent agenda items as 
presented.  
 
Chief Executive Officer Victoria Alexander-Lane reported that Martha 
Kim M.D.; Louisa Salisbury M.D.; and Allison Robinson M.D. will come 
on board at Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) in the next several months.  She 
additionally reported that Tomi Bortolazzo M.D. submitted her 
resignation effective July 31, 2015, and the hospital will recruit for a 
replacement urologist.  She also noted that management is in discussion 
with potential Rural Health Clinic (RHC) director candidates and a 
potential Chief Medical Officer (CMO) candidate. 
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane additionally reported the Inyo County Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) has corresponded with Southern Mono 
Healthcare District in regard to their plan to open a medical clinic within 
the boundaries of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District.  She explained 
that the services Southern Mono intends to offer here are not needed, and 
are already available to area residents at Northern Inyo Hospital.   
 
Ms. Lane also stated that expansion of the Northern Inyo Hospital 
Foundation is progressing well, and the group is engaged in discussing 
new projects and grant applications for education and unmet healthcare 
needs in this community.  One of the Foundation’s interests is in  



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      May 13, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
 
RADIOLOGY 
DEPARTMENT ACR 
ACCREDIDATION 
      
 
STOP LOSS CLAIMS 
 
 
 
     
CONTRACT 
DISCUSSIONS 
 
 
ACHD TRUSTEE OF 
THE YEAR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES 
APPROVALS 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
ADVANCEMENT AND 
BYLAWS AMENDMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
developing transportation resources for area residents who have no way to 
get to and from medical appointments and services. 
 
NIH Director of Diagnostic Imaging Patty Dickson reported the 
Diagnostic Imaging Department recently passed its’ full American 
College of Radiology (ACR) accreditation survey, with no violations or 
recommendations for improvement being noted. 
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane reported that NIH employee health insurance 
expenses remain high, and that 10 or more people enrolled in the 
hospital’s self-insured health plan have surpassed the stop-loss limit 
during the last several months. 
 
Ms. Lane also reported preliminary contract renewal discussions are 
underway with the Hospital's Emergency Department physicians, and 
with the anesthesiologists as well.  
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane additionally reported that District Board member 
John Ungersma M.D. was recently awarded designation as the 
Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) Trustee of the 
Year, for the State of California.  Ms. Alexander-Lane and members of 
the Board acknowledged Dr. Ungersma for his many years of dedicated 
service and advocacy on behalf of residents of this District and the State 
of California. 
 
Chief of Staff Mark Robinson M.D. reported following careful review, 
consideration, and approval by the appropriate committees, the Medical 
Executive Committee recommends approval of the following hospital 
wide policies and procedures: 

1. Cardiopulmonary – Stress Echo procedure 
2. Cardiopulmonary – Stress Echo 

It was moved by Doctor Clark, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and 
unanimously passed to approve both policies and procedures as presented. 
 
Doctor Robinson also reported following careful review and consideration 
the Medical Executive Committee recommends Board approval of the 
following: 

- Advancement of Physician Assistant Colleen McEvoy’s 
proctoring period based upon Doctors Collins' and Helvie’s 
reviews of Ms. McEvoy's charts 

- Approval of a proposed Telemedicine Bylaws Amendment to the 
NIH Medical Staff Bylaws 

It was moved by Doctor Clark, seconded by Doctor Ungersma and  
unanimously passed to approve the Medical Staff advancement and the 
Telemedicine Medical Staff Bylaws Amendment as presented.  
 
 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      May 13, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 3 of 4 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
PERFORMANCE 
EXCELLENCE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
AMENDMENTS (2) TO 
THE DISTRICT 
DEFINED BENEFIT 
RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DRAGON SOFTWARE 
PURCHASE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TISSUE PROCESSOR 
PURCHASE 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Nursing Officer Kathy Decker provided an update on nursing 
department union membership; leaves of absence; hiring and recruitment; 
and also reported that Emergency Department RN Diane Stevens recently 
received the Daisy Award for excellence in nursing. 
 
Chief Performance Excellence Officer Maria Sirois reported the 
following: 

- An NIH staff member recently filed a complaint with the office of 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in regard 
to the Emergency Department (ED) flooring replacement project  

- The kickoff meeting for this year’s Leap Frog project has taken 
place and the initial project team meeting has been held 

- The Hospital’s first phase of Lean Six Sigma training (for waste 
reduction and efficiency improvement) is nearly complete 

- The Hospital has recently appointed Ms. Lorie Thompson to 
function as Veterans Services Liaison  
 
 

Ms. Alexander-Lane called attention to two proposed Amendments to the 
Hospital District Defined Benefit Retirement Plan.  Directors Watercott 
and Hayden exited the meeting at this time due to a conflict of interest.  
Ms. Alexander-Lane noted that the first Amendment is needed in order to 
bring the existing Plan back into IRS compliance; and the second 
amendment allows for re-negotiating the Plan on behalf of union 
members.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Doctor Clark 
and passed by Board members present to approve both Amendments to 
the Hospital District Defined Benefit Retirement Plan as presented (with 
Directors Hayden and Watercott being absent from the vote).  Following 
the vote, Directors Watercott and Hayden returned to the meeting.  
 
Chief Information Officer Leo Freis called attention to a capital 
expenditure request to purchase Dragon software licenses and training for 
hospital transcription.  Mr. Freis explained that the hospital's last 
remaining transcriptionist will be moving out of the area, and this would 
be an appropriate time to switch to voice recognition transcription which 
would save the hospital approximately $140,000 annually in transcription 
costs. It was moved by Mr. Watercott, seconded by Denise Hayden, and 
unanimously passed to approve the purchase of Dragon transcription 
software licenses and training as presented.  
 
Mr. Freis also called attention to a request for early replacement of the 
hospital's tissue processor, which recently broke.  Because of its age the 
equipment can no longer be serviced by the company that manufactured 
it.  It was moved by Mr. Watercott, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and 
unanimously passed to approve the purchase of a new tissue processor as 
requested. 
 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      May 13, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 4 of 4 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
Ms. Hubbard asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 
report on any items of interest.  Doctor Ungersma reported on the ACHD 
meeting that was recently held in Monterey, California, stating that in-
depth discussion on the Affordable Care Act took place. 
 
At 6:48 pm Ms. Hubbard announced the Board of Directors would 
adjourn to closed session to/for: 
 

A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the    
responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 
Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

B. Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code section 
54956(d)(2)). 

 
At 8:04 pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
that the Board took no reportable action. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 pm. 
 

  
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 

















































































































































NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
401(a) RETIREMENT PLAN 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 

RECITALS 

A. NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
(“Employer”), adopted the NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
401(a) RETIREMENT PLAN (the “Plan”) for the benefit of its Employees and their 
Beneficiaries, effective January 1, 2013. 

B. The Employer desires to revise the timing requirements for funding 
employer contribution. 

C. Article XII of the Plan provides that the Employer reserves the right to 
amend the Plan at any time. 

AMENDMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, Employer hereby amends the NORTHERN INYO 
COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 401(a) RETIREMENT PLAN as follows: 

  1. Section 7.2 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as 
follows: 

7.2 Timing of Employer Contributions.   Contributions made 
pursuant to Section 7.1 shall be made in accordance with the funding policy 
established by the Employer. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused this amendment to be 
executed on __________________________________. 

 EMPLOYER: 
 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

 
By:___________________________________ 
      Attorneys for Employer 

 

 

29788.00001\9616347.1  





















































 
 

May 20, 2015 

To: Northern Inyo County Local Hospital 
District Board of Directors 

 
From: Scott Hooker Property / Project Manager 

 Richard Miears EVS Manager 

Topic: Floor Waxing Contract 

 

Dear Board of Directors, 

Northern Inyo Hospital advertised a request for proposal for floor waxing, this RFP was advertized during the month of 
May. 

We received two proposals: 

Just Do Right Janitorial $96,577.47  3/ year contract 

Bishop Building Maintenance $134,709.00  3/ year contract 

Richard and I are asking for your approval on the contract provided by Just Do Right Janitorial, in the amount of 
$96,577.47 this covers a three year period, and provides us with routine floor waxing on all of Northern Inyo’s 
Properties. 

 

Thank You very much for your time and consideration, 

Scott Hooker 

 

  























 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Leon Freis, R.Ph., COO/CIO 

RE: Request for Approval of Microsoft Licensing Agreement Renewal 

DATE: June 4, 2015 

Background: 

• Northern Inyo Hospital uses Microsoft Software licensed under an “Enterprise Agreement” contract with Microsoft. 

• Our contract is under a master agreement held by the City of Riverside, affording us buying power we could not 
negotiate on our own.   

• NIH is ineligible for Microsoft Non-Profit Foundation Pricing due to our status as a governmental agency and as a 
health care organization with own-use software.     

• Our current Microsoft Licensing Agreement ends in July. 

• For the past contract period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015, our licensing costs were $108,000.  This amount 
was never adjusted for the addition of 150 user devices, 100 servers and database size increases.   

• The true number of Microsoft Licenses has been reported to Microsoft and the maintenance fee adjusted to 
approximately $163,000 per year.  This new operating cost has been included in the 2015-16 operating budget 
which will come before the board for approval. 

• As the renewal is mandatory for continued use of Microsoft products, but the amount of the renewal is 
approximately 50% greater than the past agreement, I am asking the board’s approval of the Microsoft Licensing 
Renewal Agreement. 

 
 







Northern Inyo Hospital District 

Addendum to Hospitalist Agreement 

 

Joy Engblade, MD, has served under her current contract dated 1/1/15. The following is being put 
before the Board of Directors on June 17th, 2015 Directors Meeting. 

 

1. Tuition reimbursement of $10,000 (ten thousand dollars) will be paid at the end of each 
year of service. 

 



 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Leon Freis, R.Ph., COO/CIO 

RE: Microsoft Licensing Adjustment 

DATE: June 5, 2015 

Background: 

• Northern Inyo Hospital uses Microsoft Software licensed under an “Enterprise Agreement” contract with 
Microsoft 

• Our contract is under a master agreement held by the City of Riverside, affording us buying power we could not 
negotiate on our own. 

• During the past 3-year contract, we added many Microsoft-using devices which were not reported to Microsoft.  
This oversight has been discovered and rectified by IT and the 150 user devices, 100 servers and database 
increases have been reported to Microsoft.  This has resulted in a “True-up” liability of not to exceed $155,000.   

• The Microsoft maintenance increase of approximately $60,000 per year has been budgeted in the IT operating 
budget for next fiscal year and will come to the board as part of the operating budget. 

 

Request: 

Approve Microsoft True-up payment:  Not to exceed $155,000.00 

  


